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urtqt Governtflent of IJungoma
ungotna Municipality
nnual rt and Financial Statements r ilre yenr ended June 3|tt', 2023

1. Acronyurs & GlossarY of Tcrms

nser t acronyms and glos.saty of tet nts used in lhe report e'g

FY

SASB

OSHA

Fiduciary Management

Public Sector Accounting Standards Boar-d

Financial Year

Occupational SafetY & Health Act

Key management personnel who have financial responsibility in

the entity.
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County Govenrnrcrrt oJ lltt rtgonu
Bun.gonm lltlu rr

Attttttu.l lleport ear endctl .Iune 3|th, 2023

Key Entity Infirrntation and Management

a) llackground information

Bungonra Mulicipality was establislted on 5th January, 2018 by Bungoma County

Government after its charter being ratified by the County Assembly of Bungoma. It derives its

authority and accountability from the Urban Areas and Cities Act, 2012 and is an agency of
the County Government of Bungoma, domiciled in Kenya.

The Mulicipaliry is charged with the responsibility of prudently managing the ulunicipal

ecollolty to facilitate socio-econornic developrnent, n'lanagement and control of public

financial resources. The Cities and Urban Areas Act, 2012 provides for the establishment of

urban management structures including Cities and Municipal Boards as well as Towu

Cormnittees. Bungorna County in compliance with this law established.a municipal board for

the management of the Municipality.

Economic growth has been accompanied by rapid urbanization; nonetheless, Kenya remains

under urbanized inrplying that I(errya can still leverage., the benefits of urbanisation for

irlproving econonric opporhrnities and living condition's. The Govemment of Keuya has

recognized the need to manage urbanization as part of its overall development strategy. Kenya

vision 2030 highliglits rapid urbanization as one of.tfie four kcy challenges facing the counhy.

b) Principal Activities

The Municipality's principal activigy is to facilitate a sustainable urbanization process through

a1 integrated urbag and regional planning ntanagernent framcwork of I(enyan urban cetltres

and towls. Aligned to that goal, the Municipalify identifies a series of inveshlent proglams to

enhance Infi.astructure,,tonnectiviry and accessibility, safery and security. Deveioping the

basic ilstitutiols required for effective urban management is critical to deliver these

inveshlents and for urbalization to contribute to the sustaiuable growth ir.r I(enya as

highlighted in our vision and mission below.

Vision:

A thriving, safe, and costnopolitan Municipality

Mission:

To elhance the quality of life of all people in Bungonra through a developrlent system of the

Muricipality and lendering efficicnt, eifective and affordable service.

icipali4,
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c) Key Management

Ms. Jacqueline P. Malornba

Arch. Douglas W. Sasita

Hon. John B. MunYasia

Hon. Edith Shitandi

Hon. Justus B. Mbingd

Mr. Denson W. Barasa

C.P.A Gabriel W. I(birih

d) Key Management

C.P.A Gabriel W. Kibiriti

Directors/Ilead of dePartments -Administration & Human Resource.

-Finance, Accounting &Procurement.

-Physical Planning.

-Envirorunent, Public Health & Sanitation

e) Fiduciary..Oversight Arrangements

i) County AssemblY of Bungoma

The responsibilities of the County Assembly of Bungorna were as follows:

. To vet and approve nominees for appointment to county public offices as may be

provided for in the relevant laws;

. To perform the roles set out under Article 185 of the constitution;

. To approve the budget and expenditure of the counfy govemment in accordance

with Article 207 ofthe constitution, and the legislation contemplated in Article

I

2

3

4

5

6

'7

Chairperson of the Board

County Executive Conrmittee

Member responsible for Cities aud

Urban areas.

C ityllvlunicip ality Manager

Board Mernber 3

Board Mernber 2

Board Member 1

1 City/\4unicipality Mana ger

2

Board Member (C.O, H&M)

The key fiduciary oversight bodies at the County for the year ended 30th June 2023 were:
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220(2) of theconstitution, guided by Arlicles 201 and 203 of the constitution;

. To approve the borrowing by the county government in accordance with Arlicle

212 of the Constitution;

' To approve county development planning; arrd

. To perfonn any other role as may be set out u[der the Constitution or legislation

ii) Audit and Rish l\llanagement Committee

The functions and responsibilities of the audit committee were as follows:

, To obtain assurance from management that all financial and non-financial intemal

control and risk managerrrent functious ate operating effectiveiy and reliably'

. To provide an independent review of the County Executive's reporting functions to

ensure the integrity offinaucial repo(s'

. To monitor the effectiveness of the County Expiutive's performance management

and performance infomation.

' To provide strong and effective ove;sight of county Executive's intemal audit

functiou.

. To provide effective liaison and facilitate comrnunication between management

and external audit.

. To provide oversight of the irnplementation of accepted audit reconrtlendations.

. To e,s,re that the County Executive effectively uronitors compliance with

legislative ar.rd regulatory requirements and promotes a culture committed to lawful

and ethical behaviour.

iii) Public Accounts Committee

The nrain function of the Public Accounts Cornmittee is to invite the County Executive's

Accounting Officer to appear before it to adduce evidence on the repofis of the Auditor-

General.

iv) Budget and Appropriations Colnmittee

Budget ancl Appropriations Committee approves expcnditure budget of the Cottnty

Excctttive for the execution ol'governance

VJ
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Q Ilegistered Offices

P.O. Box 431-50200,

Public Works Buildings,

Huduma Cenhe - Bungoma Tourist Road,

Bungoma, Kenya.

g) Contacts

Telephone: (25 4) 7 00 -892013

F.-mail: bun gomamunicipality@bungoma. go.ke

Website: bungorna.go.ke

h) Bankers

1. Cental Bank ofKenya,

Haile Selassie Avenue,

P.O. Box 60000-00200,

Nairobi, I(enya.

2. Family Bank of Kenya,

P.O.Box -50200,

Bungoma, Kenya.

i) Independent Auditor

Auditor General,

office of the Auditqr'General,

Anniversary Towers, UniversitY WaY,

P.O.Box 30084-00100,
./

Nairobi, Kenya.

j) Principal Legal Adviser

The Attomey General - State Law Office,

Harambee Avenue,

P.O. Box 40112-00200,

Nairobi, Kenya.
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lnnuul llep orl and Finttnciul Statenrett

3. City/MuniciPalitYBoard

2. Arch. Douglas W. Sasita

C.E.C.M.

J

tl June 30'h,2023

I

i

D.O.B - April, 1970.

Graduate in Business Leadership Managetlent at Strathrnore

University and an MBA holder in Global Business

Sustainability. Certified Professional Coach (ICF). Zuri

Awards 2019 Winner Comlnunity hnpact. Founder &

Consultant (AWC) Accredited Member Fremwise. Empretec,

UNCTAD Program-Graduate & Certifred Business Master

Mentor. Board Member on several Boards of lnstihrtions'

Chairperson of Bungoma Municipal Board.

< niailnt al ontb a@gn'r ail, c om>

l. Ms. Jacqueline P. Malornba

D.O.B - October, 1979.

Graduate in Bachelor of Architecture - University of

Nairobi. C.P.A Finalist - Strathmore Univelsity College.

Registered Arcl.ritect with BORAQS - Corpolate Mernber of

Architectural Association of Kenya (A2435) - Architectural

experience for seventeen years - Llandling various design

briefs frorn institutional to residential largescale projccts of

16000m sq. such as Lovington shopping rnall and many

more. Other key exPeriences held:

. Conceptual design works /project planning atld co-

ordination /project management /project appraisals and

assessment / contract adlninistration;

. Board chair - Bungoma Municipality and other several

institutlons.

Senior Architect-Undersign Architects and lnterior

Designer for Graduate Studio Infinity Architects.

I
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D.O.B - January, 1949.

Holder of Master's degree in lntei-national Relations and

Diplomacy fi'om Masinde Muliro University; Post Graduate

Diploma in Strategic Studies from the Univelsity ofNairobi

Bachelor of Education-Makerere University and Cambridge

Higher School Certifi cate.

Key work exPeriences held include:

. Bungoma County Govemnrent C'E'C'M for Lands

Urban &. Physical Planning and llousing and

Sanitation;

' Director at Nzoia Sugar ComPanY;

. Political Officer with British lligh Comnrissioner;

. Member of Parliament'for Sirisia Constih:ency;

. Branch Executive Secretary of KNUT;

, Member Ingtidte of Directors and Chair - Kavirondo

Readers Trust.

Dipl,orha holder in Public Administration; Cerlificate in

Sdcial Work.

Key work exPeriences held:

. DeputY Mayor- Bungoma Municipal Council;

. Nominated Member of Counly Assernbly - Buugoma

CountY;

' Secretary - Posh Marketing & Communication

Services.

<edithshitandin@ gmaill coni'>

D,O.B - D€ceniber, 19654. Hon. Edith Shitandi

tx

3. Ilon. John B. MunYasia

il

t
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5. Hon. hrstus B Mbinga D.o

cial Stutentents for he Yea r entletl June i0't', 2023

B - JulY 1970

Dip loma holder in Public Administration and in Shipping

Warehousing and Clearing & Forwarding

Certificate ofl']articipation-Health Developrnent Council

and Government Trainings Institute

Otirer keY tratutng include: UN Hab itat training on slum

upgl ading in RIO DE; World leaders forurr on caPacity

build ing for MaYors; Irtprovement on service deliverY on

Cities and MuniciPalitie s (Mexico); Serninar on

Constitutional making and devolution; Green so lutions and

llCtl
rl an

il.,t
.t

sustainable develoPment'":t;;iilor uno Mayor of Mu,icipal Council of

Bun oma

D.o.B - 1978.

il""rd; "iffielor 
of Education Arts degree from the

UniversitY of Nairobi'

il;;ioiir; - Housiug, urban Areas and Municipalities'

it"i",.-8"".t, and Industrialization' Public Service

tutunug"rr"J arrd Administration'

Other kcY wort exPertence:":";i;";";of stu$ies and Depury Principal - ICbabii lligh

School;
. Bourd Member on several public institutions'

6. Mr. Denson W. Barasa

' 'ri::' ("i ;'t

l:
\-, ...- _ ---,r

YJfl?o"*"nting / Finance) from Mt Ke,va

UniversrtY
;;ir;l"tt degree in Business Management from Masinde

ia.,ri- trir"t:sitv of Science and Technology

CPA OO - I(CA Kisumu CamPus

iar"ii*r *unug"' - Bungotna Municipality;'

i"l.i,Li" "ir,bibii 
university and Sang'alo Listltute;

Finon".-offt..r - St Pauls Miluki sccondary scnool;

il;;".i;; clerk - I(enva Bureau of Statistics;

;l*t";i officer - Mastennind Kenya Ltd'

D.O.B - Ju

Holder of7. Manager/Secretary

C.P.A Gabriel W' Kibirili
[--.+J;,++jjd
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4, KeyMauagenlent'feam

D.O.B - July, 1976.

Holder of MBA (Accounting / Finance) from Mt' Kenya

University
Bachelor's degree in Business Management fi'om Masinde

Muliro University of Science and Technology

CPA (K) - KCA Kisumu CarnPus

Municipal Manager - Bnngoma Municipality

Teaching at Kibabii University and Sang'alo Institute

Finance officer - St Pauls Miluki secondary school

Enumeration clerk - Kenya Bureau of Statistics

Clerical officer - Mastermind Kenya Ltd'

D.O.B - February, 1979.

Holds a Bachelor of Commerce in Human Resource

Development from Masinde Muliro University of Science

and TechnologY.r'
14 years of wqrk experience in administration and 2 years

in comnrunity work.
. SeRior management trainings;
. .Office management & co-ordination;

'. Policy formulation.

Mr. Caleb K. Simiyu

D.O.B - JulY, 1987.

Flolder of Bachelor of Science degree in Mathemalics

from Jorno I(enyatta University of Agriculture &'

Technology and ACCA fiualist.

Highly cortpetent professional with over i3 yeals of

experience gained in both public and private entities

having worked as M&E officer, Data analyst, research

analyst and consultant.
. Proven Financial Management experience;

. Focused understanding of Monitorilg and Evaluation

fiameworks / Statistical modelling and rneflrods,

Research initiatives and its applications /Business

analytics / Strategic Planning /Proj ect m anagement.

Mr. Wekesi F. Micheal

!

C.P.A Gabriel W. I(biriti

'-=:-'F€=.#
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Ilolder ofRachelor of arts degree in urban and regional

plaruring frotn Maseno University'

Tyears of working experience as a physical planner with

the County Governrnent of Bungoma'

D.O.B - FcbruarY, 1988.Mr'. Andlew B. KeYa

xll
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the town and promoting ease movement

Lnplementation challenges of stfategic objectives for the County municipal board included the

following: - Inadequate and..d elayed funding, high poverty level, political interference in pro.;ect

prlontrza on and implementat ion, dclay in the procurement processes among other challenges

5. Municipality Roard Chairperson's Report

It is my pleasure to preser.rt to you n1y relnarks ol the financial performance of the Bungotlra

Municipal Board. Bungorna county Govenlmellt established this Board upon realization that there

is need to spur economic growth of th" p"ople of Bungoma by inrproving on infrastructure aud

creating a clean and viable enabling environment for its citizens'

The Board nrenrbers appointed by His Excellency the Governor mauages the MuDicipality and

during the year, they were no changes ofboard members. In the year ended 30 June 2023, the

Board had projected revenues of Ifths.145, 730,935 from Donors KUSP and county govemment

of which KShs.3l, g96,56g.75 was received. The total expenditure budget for the financial year

was lGlrs.?8,00I,154 and total actual expenditure amounted to Kshs.6l, 529,750'85, representing

7g.9% budget absorptio'. Out of the total expendihrre, Kshs.3O, 441,7.31.85 was general

adrninistration expenditure while KShs.31,088,019 was development expenditure'

In the financial year 202312024, the Municipal Board of Bungoma has a total budget of lfths'

216,25l,Iooofwhich,tecurrentisKshs.28,745,800anddevelopmentisKshs.l87,5l2,000.The
budget intends to fund various project, which include " 

r'

. Upgrading of access roads and other ward development fund proj ects within the Municipality'

. Construction of modern market stalls and bus patk,'

' Rehabilitation of stormy water drainage works

.Constructionmodernauctionringandsanitationfacilities

' Acquisition of land

During the year, the Municipal board urldertook the project improving the Municipality roads

network by upgrading oo. ofih" acceEs'roads to bituminous standards, hence boosting the look of

Name: Jacq'ueline P. Malomba

Chairperson of the lloard

xll l
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6. Report of the Murricipality Manager

It is nry pleasure to preseut the Bungoma Municipal board financial statements for the year ended
3otl'June 2023. The financial statements present the financial performance of the Coq,ty
Goverament over the past year.

The promulgation of the Constitution of Kenya, 2010, under Chapter l l ushered Kenya into a new
systeul of governance, replacing the centralized system with a devoived systern of govenra,ce.
The devolved system of govenrance consists of the National Government and 47 County
Govemntents' The Bungonra Municipal is established uncler the urban areas and cities act 2016.

Financing of the Mrrnicipal Board

It is nrajorly flinded by Kenya ur-ban support programme through CARA

Financial Perforurancc

a) Revcnue

In the year ended 30thJune2023, the Board had proje6ted revenues of Kshs.l45, 730,935 from
I(USP donors througlt Cara and the county government of which l(Shs.3l, g96,56g.75 was
receipted.

b) Payments

The total expenditure budget for the finaucial year was IGhs.78,001,154 and total actual
expenditure amounted to Ifths 61, 529,750.85 representiDg 78.9% budget absorption. out of the
total expenditure' Kshs. 30, 441,731.85 was general adrninistration expendinrre while IGhs.
KShs.3 1, 088,019. was development expenditure.

c) Bungoma Municipality projects

The project undettaken by the Municipal board that include on delivering all our mandated
objectives was to upgrade phase I of Pamus - Muyayi - Ndengelwa road to bitu'rinous sta,dard.

xlv
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e) Future Outlook

In the financial year 202312024, the Municipal Board of Bungoma has a total budget of lfths'

?16,257,800 of .vhich, recurrent is IGhs.28,745,800 and development is I(shs' 187,512,000' Tlie

budget intends to fund various project, which include i

. Upgrading of access roads and other ward developrnent fund projects within the Municipality.

Construction of rnodern nrarket stalls and bus park'

Rehabilitation of stormy water drainage works

Constnrction modem auction ring and sanitation facilities

Acquisition of land

f) Key Risk Management Strategies

The Management employs robttst risk mdnagement strategies. While Risk Managelnent has not

rnatured in the Bungorna Municipal Board, the Management has developed the followirrg

structured approach in identifying and mauaging risks;

a) Risk registers, based on a standardised methodology, are used to identify, assess and

monitor the key risks (both financial and non-financial) faced by the municipal board.

b) Risks are identified, assessed, evaluated, responded to depending on the lisk ranking ar.rd

monitored. Depending ou the ranlcing of the risk, the management employs the following

strategies as per the Approved Risk Managernent Policy Framework of the County;

i. Risks ranked as high - The event creating the risk is irnrnediately stopped and a

comprehensive action plan immediately prepared with appropriate risk responses

that include transfering the risks, avoiding the risk or reducing the risk

ii. Risks ralked as siglificant - An action plan is developed and action taken within

three molths. The approved actions include transferring the risks, avoiding the lisk

or reducing the risk

icipali4,
and Financial Sttdcntents for tlte ye

!

xv

d) Challengcs

1:rplemer-rtation challenges of strategic objectives for the Municipal Board of Rungoma inch'rded

the followilg: - Inadequate ald delayed Government funding, high poverty levels, political

interference in project prioritization ald implementation, inadequate infrastlucture and delay in

procurement processes atnong other chailenges.
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iii. Risks ranked as moderate - Au action plan is developed and action tal(en within six

mo,ths. The approved actiolls include transferring the risks, avoiding the risk or

reducing the risk. where such risks are accepted, a contingency plan is immediately

developed

iv. Risks ranked as low - An action plan is developed and action taken. The approved

actions include redllcing the risk or accepting the risks where it is deerned to be

cost-effective. The risks ranked low are continuollsly rnonitored so as to assess the

cl, anged status

c) we have coltinuously enhanced our intetnal systems to mitigate risks such as fraud, poor

service delivety, failed targets alnong others and to improve efficieniy and effectiveness

icipality
and Financial Statemerrls Jbr the y

Name: C.P.A Gabriel W. Ifibiriti

Municipality Manager

xvl
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7. Starernent of Performancc against Pretletennined objectives for thc Fy 202212023

Introduction

Section 164 (2)(f) of the Public Finance Mailagemenl Act,2072 requiles that' at the end of each

financial year, the Accounting officer when preparing financial statements of each county

Govenlnent entities in accordance with the standards and fonnats prescribed by the Public Sector

Accounting Standards Board includes a statemert of the cou[ty govemnlent Fund's perfonnan'ce

against predetennined objectives.

Bungoma Municipality as established on 5th Jarruary, 2018 by Bungorna Coutrty Governnrent after

its charter being ratihed by the county Assembly of Bungonra, derives its authority alld

accountability fro,r the Urban Areas and cities Act, 2012 aud is an agency of the county

Govemrnent of Bungoma, domiciled in Kenya. The Municipaliry is charged with the responsibiliry

of prudently managing the municipal economy to facililate socio-economic development'

rnanagement and control of public financial ttto"tt"t',,.

The key development objectives of the Municipaliiy are to provide quality physical urban

infrastructure; enhance the urban economy' environment and humau social services leading to the

growth of opportunities created, improved wellness and safety' quality living environment and

good govemance as hightighted in the Miinicipality strategic plan of 2020 - 2024 ltnancial years'

During the year under review, tire Municipality budgeted for KShs 109,887,700 that was to be

financed by the KUSP and..KShs 35,843,215 by the County Goverrurent' As at the closure of the

year, KShs 31, 896,568.75 had been received leading to an undetperformanceThe budget was

also financed by KShs42, 22O,go5 donor fuuds brought forward from the previous FY budget' Tlie

activities of the Municipality were also financed by KShs28, 898,381 '85 that were payments made

by the CounfY Govemment

i

In FY under

review we

increased....

Number of

developments

plan approved

To create orderlY

development in

ulban areas

To control

development

urban

Urban

Govern ance

xvll
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e

No. of policies /

Iegulations /

by-laws

reviewed and

developed

Urban

Infrastructure

Developurent

and

Managernent

0.8 KMs of

Municipality

access road

upgraded to

bituminous

standard in the FY

of review

Urban

Env ironment,

llealth,

Culture and

Social

Services

No progress

encountered due to

lack of allocation

of funds

The Municipality has experienced various challenges, the key challenge of which was the delayed

and lirr.rited financiirg. This has largely been caused by lack of allocation towards the Municipality

development plans frour the exchequer. The Management has since reviewed the situation and the

challenge is not expected to affect our operations in the near future. The irnproved budget

allocation is expected to lead to better irnplementation of Municipaliry development plans hence

enhancing tlre entity's absorption of the funds.

xvllI
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Internal Control Framervork

TheprimaryobjectiveoftheMtrnicipalityinternalcontrolframeworkistocontinuouslycotneup

withmeastlrestoattainaccountabilityandtheEntity'Sobjectiveswhilemeetingstakeholders'

expectatiorrs.TheMunicipalManagerisaccorrntablefortnaintairrir-rgasoundsystemofinternal

controls to ensure the accomplishment of established objectives and goals for operations; the

xlx

Financial Performance

Asdisctrssedabove,theMunicipalirybudgetedforKSlrs.l0g,S8?,T00thatwastobefirrarrcedby

KUSPandKShs.35,843,2l5bytheCountyGovernmentofBungoma.Asattheclosureofthe

year,KShs.3l,896,568.T5hadbeerrreceivedbytheEntityleadingtoanunderperformance.The

budgetwasalsofinancedbyDonorfundsbroughtforwardofKShs.42,220,go5.Theactivitiesof

theMrrnicipalitywerealsofinarrcedbyKShs.28,8gs,3Sl.85thatwerepaymentsmadebythe

CountY Govemment'

Major Challenges

TheMunicipalityhasexperiencedvariouschallerrges,thekeychallengeofwhichwasthedelayed

and or limited financing especially from the exchequer. High poverty levels, political interference

in project prioritization and imple,re,tatio, were key challengls among others' These have largely

been caused by lack of allocation towards the Municipality developrnent plans from the exchequer'

The Managernent has since reviewed the sihration k tt:r" challenge is not expected to affect our

operations in the near future'

Risk Managelnent .. '.''

Riskmanagementisanessentialco,rporategovernancerequilementbecausecertaininformation

aboutkeyprogrammes,costand,ferfolmanceareoftenunknownturtiliateintheimplementation

stage.TheFundlrasrrotfuJlventrenchedriskrrranagement.I{owever,theFundhasadoptedtlre

ApprovedfuskManagementPolicyFrameworkoftheCountyGovemment.Themanagement

undertakestoestablisharrauditandriskmanagementcomrnitteewhosemandateshallbeto

develop action pl'ans to address major risks'
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ecotlntrtic ttse of resout'ces; the reliability and integrity of infbmration; compliance witl policies,
plans procedures, rules and regulations and the safeguarding of assets.

Review of Effectivencss

The Municipality reviews its internal control using the coso Interaal control - Iategrated
Fratnework' 2013' The Framework identifies five conrponents of intemal control, three of which
have been discussed in detail hereunder. The review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
controls is rnainly infomred by:

a) coutrol Activities - coutrol activities are the policies and procedures that help e,sure
managemellt directives are canied out. They help ensure that necessiry actions are taken
to address risks to achieve the its objectives. control activities occur throughout at all levels
a,d i, all fu,ctions. They i,clude a range of activities as diverse as approvals,
authorizations, verifications, reconciliations, reviews of 6perating performance, security of
assets and segregation of duties.

b) Infonnation and communication - Pertinent ipfonnation must be identified, capfured, aud
communicated in a fon.,, and timeframe that enables people to carry out their
responsibilities' Information systems pioduce reports related to operational, financial, a,d
compliance infonnation that is reliable on a timely basis for submission to key stakeholders
and econornic dccision rnakers.

c) Risk Managetneut - The Fund uudertake risk managenrent roles as explained o' page
above.
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8 Corporate Governance Statement

1) Composition of the board
The Bungotna Municipal board consists of representatives that serve on part timc
basis and are constituted from trvo main categories;

1) Three members appointed through a competitive process by the county public service
board and approved by county assembly.

2) Five mernbers of the board norninated by the following umbrella bodies.
a) An unrbrella bodies representiug professional association in the area.

b) An association representing the private and infoulal sector in the area.

c) A cluster representing registered neighbourhood association in the area.

d) An association of the Municipality and appointed by the county executive
comrnittee with the approval of corurty assembly. A total of l0 nrembers. Upto-
date the Bungorna Municipality board has had the following iirembers.

To complete the composition of the board there is need to appoint 3 uore members from;

a) A cluster representing registered association of the infonnal sector in the area

b) A cluster representing professional association in the area.

c) Competitive process

BOARD DIVERSITY
Members who have experience in accountancy, corporate governance, legal constifutiou, works
and engineering and business establish the board.

NO

1

NAME GENDER NOMINATING
INSTITUTION

REMARI(S

F Charaber of
Ccimmerce

Board clrair

2 Hon. John Munyasia M Competitive Process Member
3 Hon. Justus Mbinga M,/ Competitive Process Member
4 F, Comrnunity

Representative
Member

5 Hon. Jererniah Kuloba M Infomral sector Resigned
Deceased6 Mr. Walinywa Mukharnule F Cornpetitive Process

7 Arch. Douglas Sasita Professional
Associ ation

Rcsigned

8 C.P.A Gabriel Kibiriti M Municipal Manager Board
sccretal'y

9 Ms. Chris,tine Simiyu F CECM
Representative

Mernber'

l0 Mr. Denson Barasa M Chief officer Member

xxl

However, the 7 members out of the 10 meet the threshold of two third quorum.

Ms. Jackie Malomba

Hon. Edith Shitandi

M
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I{OLE AND IIESPONSII}ILITY OF THE }}OARD ]\TEMBERS
The powers, objectives and fuuctions of the Municipality are stipulated in the Municipal charter
(here with attached).

BOARD COMPOSITION AND COMMITTEES
The following table represents the board colnposition and its corunittees. There are Ibnr
corlrnittees of the board. The table below shows the chails and members of each couunittee of
the board.

N/B (*) Represent the Chairyersons of the board/ Comrnittees
The Audit Committee is not yet cornposed.

Denson Barasa 3

5

REI.- MEMBERS FULL
BOARD

AFEPT
COMMITTEE

LUPPH
COMMITTEE

ESC&S
COMMIT'TEE

AUDIT
COMMITTEE

I Ms. Jackie
Malornba

2 Hon. John
Munyasia

J Iilou. Justus
Mbinga

4 Hon. Edith
Shitandi

5 Ms.
Clrri stine
Simiyu

6 Mr. Denson
Barasa

1 C.P.A
Gabriel
Kibiriti

NO. I\{EN{BERS NUMBER OF
MEETINGS
ATTENDED

1 Jackie Malomba 5

2 Hon John Munyasia 5

J Hon Editli Shitandi -5

4 Hon Justus Mbinga
5 Cluistiue Simiyu 5

6

7 C.P.A Gabriel I(ibiriti (Secretary)

x xl1

3) Board attendance.
Best practice requiring that every board member attend tninimun of 7 5o/o of all board rneetings.

Below is an extragt from the attendance register for the board meetings held in the per-iod from
1 't Jnly 2022 to 30e June 2023.

5
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(t Caleb l(shombe - In attendance 5

Committee mcetinq attendance

1) Administration, Financc, Economic Planning and Trade Comnrittee

This committee deals with promotion of good govemance, prudent financial mauagernent, good
planning and prornotion of businesses within the Municipality.

2) Land use Planning, Infrastructure and Housing Committee
This cornmittee deals with Municipal Physical, Urbqn Planning and development control,
lnfrastructure development and housing.

3) Environm6ntal, Social Serviccs, Culture and Sports Committee
This committee deals with environrnental conservations, Social and Cultural activities within the
Municipality.

MEMBERS NUMBER OF MEETINGS
DURING THE YEAR

NUMBER OF MEETINGS
ATTENDED

Hon. John Munyasia 4 4

Hon. Edith Shitandi 4 4
I{on. Justus Mbinga 4 4
Ms. Christine Sirniyu 4

C.P.A Gabriel Kbiriti 4

Mr. Denson Barasa 4 J

Members Number of meetings during
the year

Number of mcetings
attended

Hon. John Munyasia 4 4
Hon. Edith Shitandi 4 4
Hon. Justus Mbinga 4 4
Ms. Christine Simiyu 4 4
C.P.A Gabriel Kibiriti 4 4

Members Nuraber of meetings during
the year

Nurrber of meetings attended

Hon. John Munyasia 4 4

4 4

Hon. Justus Mbinga 4 4

C.P.A Gabriel Ifibiriti 4

Internal audit couunittee not composed

xxl u

4

4

Hon. Edith Shitandi

4
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The tenn of the board is outlined under the urban areas and cities Act 2011. The urembers serve
for a term of five years' renewable once. The board rnembers were appointed on l5th August
2019 and their five-yeal period will expire on l5(h Augnst 2024,renewable once.

Compliance to larv and other legal requirenrents.
Bungorna Municipal board is a l'esponsible corporate citizen and is alive to the tenels of the
constitution of I(enya and is flilly corapliant with the provisions o1'the urban areas and Cities Act
201 1 under wliich the board is established. The board also ensures compliance to the other
fiduciary Acts

Board lternuneration
As per the PFM act, 2012 section 195 (2), the rernuneration payable allowarlces to the urembers
of the Board are dctermined by the salaries and rernuneration conrnrission. Details of tlie Board
and Corlrnittee allowances are included in these financial statements.

Conllicts oI interests ancl declaration of intercst.
have established duty to avoid situations in which they have or may have
t with those of the board. Board members arc obligated to disclose the board
conflicts of interest which may come to their attention whether direct or

The board membcrs
interests that conflic
any real or potential
indirect.

Board Charter
The Board is still using the Bungorna Municip'al charter. It's in the process of developing it's on
board charter, provided in Mwongozo Code and best cooperate State governance practices.

The performance of the board and'its rnembers is to be evaluated on a regular basis. We should
do the evaluation at the end ofthe year June 2023.

xx lv

'l'ertl of Board Meurbers

lloard Evaluation



Cotutty Governmanl o.f Bungonta
Bungonn Municipality
Annual Report and l'inancial Statements for lhe Yenr endetl June 30'h, 2023

9. Managerncnt Discussion and Analysis

The board of Bungoma Municipality was brought into conception as a result ol the Urban areas

and Cities Act 20l l which stiputatei the criteria for classifuing Municipalities and Cities and the

constitution of the Municipal and cities board.

As a result, the governor of Bungonra granted the charter to the Municipality on 23'd November,-

201g. Consequ*tty, fi" constituted tG Municipal board in accordance with the Urban areas and

Cities Act of 2011 and the Municipal Charter.

The board became fully operational in January 2020 doing the first board-meeting where the

elections were held and confide off,rcials were appointed. Operational and financial perfonnance

of the board during the peiod2022/2023 include among others;

. The board has been able to hold key board and committee's meetingi accordirrg to the

regulations laid down. The board has held rneetings and committee tneetings'

o It has been able identify projects for the Municipality in conformity with the projects

identified by the public through citizen fora held'

. It has already formulated the waste management policy,Pending the approval of the

executive and the County assembly.

. It has been able to develop the frve year Municipal iutegrated and developrnent plan a[d

the strategic plan, pending assembly approval' z

. It has also developed the waste managementdlan, peding asserlbly approval'

. Transfer of the functions to the Municipality through the gazetted notice. So far 22

functions have been transferred to the Municipality, pending facilitation'

,,
The key board projects or i,vestments ddcisions irnplernented during the year 2022-2023 include

among others;
i) For the year 201812019, ttre following projects wcre undertaken'

z'
.1. construction of Kanduyi - Makutano road to bitumen standards at a cost KShs'

52,880,518.00

{. Constructi6n of sheriff centre - prisons -Mama Fanta roads to bitumen standards at a cost

KShs. 48,389,766.76

ii) For the year 2)lgl2O2O,the following projects were undertaken'

.l Upgrading of Sunrise - Bungoma high - Moi primary and other CBD roads at a cost of

KShs. 48,255,065.04

.i.UpgradingofWings-WambiyaRoadandotherconnectingroadsatacostofl(Shs.
52,870,749.12

xxv
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iii) For the vear 2020/2021
.:.' upgr..dirrg 

"f 
P".r* Ndengelwa road phase I to bitume[ standards at a cost I(shs'

38,812,934.00.

Major r.isks facing the flind materiai areas in statutory and other financial obligation include

inadequate antl lati disburseDrent of finances, legal constrains and political iuterferences'

The view to move the organization to another level, the board is exploring to have other donols to

fur.rd the nurnerous i,frastnrctural needs of the Municipality, to look for parties and to find ways

of iutegrated developments. The board also seem to have ways of creating an inte r-governmental

forurnio have a wholesome approach to Municipality's developnrent.

xxvl
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10. Environmental And SustainabilityRcporting

The Municipality of Bungonra exists to trausform lives. This is our purpose; the driving force

behind everythilg we do. It's what guides us to deliver our strategy, which is founded o1 the

following pillars: puttiug the residents/Citizen first, delivering relevaDt goods and selices' aud

irnprovilg operatioual excellence. Below is a brief highlight of our achievements iu each pillar"

1. Sustainability strategy and profile

ThetopmanagementespeciallytheAccountingofficershouldmakereferenceto

sustainable efforls, broad trends in political and rnacroeconotnic factors affecting

sustainability priorities, reference to international best practices and k6y achievements and

failure.

2. Environmental Performance

outline clearly, environmental policy guiding the organisation, provide evidence of the

policy. Outline successcs, shottconrings,. ditottt to rnanage biodiversity' waste

management policy and efforts to reduce environtlental impact of the organisatiou's

products.

3. Elnployee rvelfarc

-Institutional policy set in place for hiring employees. Guidelines on developing inteuts,

needs assessment, hire process, placement'

Stakeholder engagernent ant creation of awareuess'

Creation oI skills inventory and done periodically to keep a braced with account of work

at stake.

Aspects of two thirds gender rule most applicable during hiring of ernployees'

hnprovement of employee working performance in terms of seminars, refresher collrses,

workshops and other relevant training bodies in career development, reward systems and

appraisals,keepingcotnpliarrcewithoccupationalSafetyandHealthActof200T.

xxvl I
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4. Market place practices

The organisation should outline its efforts to

a) Responsiblecompetitionpractice.
To ensure that officers rnust be conversant and be involved in every law or policy passed
by the County Assenrbly. Cornpare and contrast with other established institutions with
best practices for service delivery. All to be involved during fonnulation of policies and
basic regulations on ant-corruption.
Be able to negotiate and navigate to rnake sure the political levels are flilly involved
accordingly.

b) Responsible Supply chain and supplier relations
Ensure procltrernent procedure are well adhered in the accord with proculement and asset
disposal Act 2015.
Payrnent of all supplies as per the required placement orders.
Maintain proper ethical business practices.

c) Responsible marketing and advertisement
Follow requisite procedure during tendering and awards.
Making sure payment is done on tirne and within required period

XXVIII

Couttty Govcrnment of Bungoma
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Product stewardship
To establish and identifo your customers.
Maintain proper contacts and network frequently.
To develop a systematic Political, Education, Social, Taients and Economical interests.

5. Community Engagements
Article 1 of the Constitution provides that all the sovereign power belongs to the people.
Through Civic education and arvareness, the comlrrunity is well coordinate and included during
program irnplementation.
Activities carried out/ike citizen fora mee tings, public participatiou and stakeholder
engagements impact positively on community engagements.
Set proper tools of engagement with communiry which include: - memoranda or letters
participating in. sector groups, petitions and municipal/County forurns.
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11. Iteport qf the Municipality Eoard Members

The Board Members subrnit their report together with the audited financial statemeuts for

the year ended June 30'l', 2023 which show the state of the City / Municipality affairs.

Principal activities

The prilcipal activity of the Municipality is to facilitate a sustainable urbanization process

through an integrated urban and regional planning lrlanagement frarrewolk of l(enyan

urban centres and towns.

Performan ce

Tlre performance of the Municipality for the year ended June 3}th,2023 ate set out on page

Board Members

The members of the Board who served during the year are show:r on page IX, The changes

in the Board during the hnancial ycar are as shown below:

xx

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the ciryMunicipality in

accordance with Article 229 of t\'rc constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 201 5 '

,,/
By Order of the Board

;aL

Name: C.P.A Gabriel W. Kibiriti

Secretary ofthe Board

xxlx
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I2 Statement of Managentent's llespon si bilities

Section 180 of the Public Finance Management Act,2012 requires that, at the end of each financial

year, the Accounting Officer of the Municipality established by Urban Areas and Cities Act No.

13 of 2011 sl'rall prepale financial statemer)ts in accordance with the standards and fonnats

ptescribed by tlie Public Sector Accounting Standards Board.

The Municipal manager is respoirsible for the prepar ation and presentation of the Municipality's

financial statements, which give a hue and fair view of the state of affairs of the Municipality for

atrd as at the end of the financial year ended on June 30,2023. This responsibility includes:

(i) Maintaiuing adequate financial managemeDt arrangements and ensuring that these coltinue

to be effective tluoughout the reporting period,

(it) Maintaining proper accounting records, wl'rich disclose with reasonable accuracy at any

ttne the financial position of the Municipality.

(iiD Designing, implementing and maintaining interu6l contlols relevant to the preparation and

fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from rnaterial

misstaternents, whether due to enor or liaud.

(iv) Safeguarding the assets of the Muaicipality.

(v) Selecting and applying appropriate account rg policies, and

(vi) Making accounting cstimates that are reasonable in the circurnstances.

The Municipal Manager accepts responsibility for the financial statements, which have been

prepared using applopriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and pmdentjudgrnents and

estinrates, in confo'rmity with lntemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the

Elanner required by the PFM Act,2012 nd Urban Areas and Cities Act No. 13 of 2011. The

Municipal Manager is of tlle opinion that the financial statements give a h'ue and fair view of the

state of Municipality's transactions during the flnancial year ended June 30, 2023, andthe financial

position as at that date.
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'the Municipal Malager further confims the conr.pleteness of tlre accourrtiug records whicit have

been relied upon in the pt'epalatior of fi1a1cial statellrents as well as the adequacy of thc systerns of

intenral fiuancial control

In preparing the fina[cial statements, the f)irectors have assessecl the Fund's ability to contintte as

a golng concem

Notliing has conre to the attention of the Municipal Manager to indicate that the Municipality will

not rernain a going concem for at least the next twelve months frorn the date of tliis statement'

Approval of the financial staternents

The MunicipaVCity's finaucial statemerts were approved by the Boaid onlj:$orrand sigrred o*

its behalf by:

(ffi ,,*

.Name:

._r-.--L ..........

Name:

Chairperson of tlte Board Accounting officcr of tlie Board

xxxt
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL

LnhtnL ing .1< L't turrtuhiIil.r'

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON BUNGOMA MUNICIPALITY FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE,2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Ad,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Adverse Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bungoma Municipality set out
on pages 1 to 23, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at

Report of the Auditor-General on Bungoma Municipality for the year ended 30 June, 2023

HEADqUARTERS
Anniversary Towers

Monrovia Street
P.O. Box 3oo84-ooroo

NAIROBI



o30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net
assets, statement or'cash flows and the statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for
Adverse Opinion section of my report, the financial statements do not present fairly, the
financial position of Bungoma Municipality as at 30 June, 2023 ,and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with lnternational
Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and do not comply with the Public
Finance Management Acl,2012 and the Urban Areas and Cities Act, 2011.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

1. Unconfirmed Opening Balances

The statement of changes in net assets reflects an opening accumulated balance as at
1 July, 2022 of Kshs.42,220,905. Further, the statement of cash flows reflects a balance
of Kshs.42,220,905 in respects of cash and cash equivalents as at 1 July,2022. However,
the source of these opening balances could not be confirmed since these are the first
financial statements and first year of audit of the Municipality

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the opening balances under the
two components could not be confirmed.

2. lnaccuracy of Transfers from the County Government

The statement of financial performance reflects transfers from the County Government
amounting to Kshs.26,984,888 as disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements.
However, supporting schedules provided for audit reflect an amount of Kshs.26,326,615
resulting to un-explained and unreconciled variance of Kshs.658,273.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of Kshs.26,984,888 in respect of
transfers from the County Government could not be confirmed.

3. Unsupported Trade and Other Payables

The statement of financial position reflects a balance of Kshs.2,910,609 in respect of
trade and other payables which, as disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements,
relates to retentions. However, detailed schedules were not provided to support the
balance.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the trade and other payables
balance of Kshs.2,910,609 could not be confirmed.

Report of the Auditor-General on Bungoma Municipality for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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4. Unsupported Expenditure on Use of Goods and Services

The statement of financial performance reflects an amount of Kshs.14,531,399 in respect
of use of goods and services which as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements
includes Kshs.5,917,970, Kshs.844,689, Kshs.720,550 and Kshs.1,860 in respect of
hospitality supplies and services, office and general supplies and services, other
operating expenses and bank charges respectively. However, supporting schedules were
not provided.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and propriety of expenditure totalling
Kshs.7,485,069 on use of goods and services could not be confirmed.

5. !naccuracy of the Property, Plant and Equipment Balance

The statement of financial position reflects a balance of Kshs.30,309,005 in respect of
property, plant and equipment as disclosed in Note 12 to the financial statements.
However, the Municipality Management did not maintain a fixed assets register with
information relating to: date of purchase, supplier, cost, location, unique identification
number, accumulated depreciation and net book values.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and fair valuation of the property, plant
and equipment balance of Kshs.30,309,005 could not be confirmed.

6. Un-VouchedExpenditure

6.1. Staff Costs

The statement of financial performance reflects an amount of Kshs.8,263,512 in respect
of staff costs as disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements. However, payment
vouchers and related supporting documents were not provided for audit review.

6.2. Board Expenses

The statement of financial performance reflects an amount of Kshs.2,737,000 in respect
of board expenses. However, payment vouchers and underlying supporting documents
were not provided for audit.

ln the circumstances, the propriety of expenditure totalling Kshs.1 1 ,000,512 could not be
confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Bungoma Municipality Management in
accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical requirements
applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe that the audit
evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my adverse
opinion.

Report of the Auditor-General on Bungoma Municipality for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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Emphasis of Matter

Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects receipt budget and
actual on comparable basis amounts of Kshs.240,937,981 and Kshs.26,984,888
respectively, resulting to under-funding of Kshs.213,953,093 or 89% of the budget.

Similarly, the Municipality expended Kshs.25,531,911 against approved budget of
Kshs.240,937,981 resulting to under-expenditure of Kshs.215,406,070 or 89% of the
budget.

The under-funding and under-performance affected planned activities and may have
impacted negatively on service delivery to the public.

My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, because of the significance of the
matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion and Basis for Conclusion on
Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources sections of my report, based
on the audit procedures performed, I confirm that public resources have not been applied
lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Late Submission of the Financial Statements

The ftnancial statements of Bungoma Municipality were submitted to the Auditor-General
on 5 October,2023. This is contrary to Section a7() of the Public Audit Act, 2015 which
requires financial statements of a public entity to be submitted to the Auditor-General
within three months after the end of the fiscal year to which the accounts relate.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

2.Lack ofan Approved Budget

The Municipality Management did not provide approved budget for the year under review
to support the amounts reflected in the statement of comparison of budget and actual

Report of the Auditor-General on Bungoma Municipalityfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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amounts. This is contrary to Section 45(1) of the Urban Areas and Cities Act, 201 1 which
requires a Board of a Municipality to prepare an annual budget for the Municipality.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of law.

3. Lack of Operational Autonomy of Bungoma Municipality

During the audit, it was observed that only office operations were carried out by the
Municipality Board while project implementation was carried out by the County Executive
through the Department of Lands, Housing, Urban Areas Development, Physical Planning
and Roads and Public Works. This is contrary to Section 21(1)(a) of the Urban Areas and
Cities Act, 2011 which gives Municipalities executive authority as delegated by County
Executives.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, because of the significance
of the matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion and Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance sections of my
report, based on the audit procedures performed, I confirm that internal controls, risk
management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and overall
governance could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Lack of Internal Audit Reports

During the audit, it was observed that there were no internal audit reports and, as a result,
there was no review of governance structures, value for money and risk-based audits.
There was also no verification of internal controls and assets.

Report of the Auditor-General on Bungoma Municipalityfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with the Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis)l
and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
controls, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Municipality's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Municipality or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Municipality's
financial reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors
compliance with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective
processes and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation
to governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of
the control environment.

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in

Report of the Auditor-General on Bungoma Municipalityfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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compliance with the authorities that govern them, and that public resources are applied
in an effective way, in accordance with the proVisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in

which the design or operation of one or more of the internal controls components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
Municipality's policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

a

a

a

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Municipality's ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of my audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Municipality
to cease to continue to sustain its services.

Report of the Auditor-General on Bungoma Municipality for the year ended i0 June, 202 3
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a Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Municipality to express an opinion on the financial
statements.

a

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA BS

Nairobi

20 March,2024

Report of the Auditor-General on Bungoma Municipality for the year ended 30 June, 202i
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Notes 2022/23

Revenue f rom non-exchan 8e transact ions
Transfers from the County 6overnment 6 26,984,888

Total revenue 26.984,88A

Ex penditure
Use of goods and services 7 14,531.399
Staff costs B B.263.s12
Board ex Penret 9 2,737,000
Depreciation & Amortization 10 777.1s4

Total expenses 26,309,O6s
!urplus,/(deficit) for the period 67 5,823

14 Statement of F-inancial Perforrnzrnce Ibr the Year Ended 3OJune 2023.

The notes set out on pages I to 28 forrn int gral part of these Financial Staternents.The entity
financial state ere approved on 2023 andsi ed

- ,tI

2):r-
Name:

Municipality Manager

Name:

Head of Finance

Kshs.

1



Counly Governmenl of Bungoma
Bu ngonta Municipality
Annual Rqtort antl Financial Statenrctlts for the year entletl June 30't', )02i

Note 2022/2023

Assets
C u rrent assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11 15,498.332

15,49A,332
Non-current as sets
Property, plant, and equipment 12 30,309,OOs
Total Non-current AJsets 3 0,3 09,OO5
Total assets '45,4O7 .337

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 13 2.910.609
Total liabilities 2,910,609

N et assets
Accumulated surplus 42,a96,72a
Total net assets and liabilities 45,AO7 ,337

l5 Statcrnent of Financial Position As At 30 June 2023

The accounting policies and explanatory notes to these financial statements

the financial statements. The entity financial statements were approved on

signed by:

fon-n an inte al part of

>-x1"1 2023 and

6,
t

Name:

CityMu n i cip alify Ma nn g er

Date: 2-<(01\ r-. t:

Name:

Ilead of FinanceIr
Date: >dYl2-o)3

2



Cou.ttty Govcntment of Bungoma
Rungoma Municipality
Annual Report and Firtancial Statemer s for tlte yeur entled Jurte 30'J',2023

16 Stateme[t of charrgcs In Net Assets For the Year llndcd 30 June 2023

Total

s h 5 Ks 5

Balance as at l Jul 2022 42,220,905 42,220.905
5ur lus/ deficit for the eriod 675,823 675,823

Balance as at 3O June 2023 42,896,724 42,A96,728

I The Opening accumulated Surplus is the Opening Bank Balance us wele reporting for the

first time

3

Accumulated su rPlus



17 Statement C)f Cash Flows lbr 'f he Year Ended 30 June 2023

Note 2022/23
Kshs

Cash flows from o eratin activities
Recei t5

Transfers from the Count Covernment 6 26,984.888

Total Recei ts 26,9A4,888

Pa ments
Use of oods and services 7

Staff costs B 8.263.s12

Board ex ense5 2.737.OOO

Finance costs

Total Pa ments 25,531,911

Ad usted fo r:
ln crea sel(de c rea se)

retention/ Trade Pa
in deposits and
ables

2.9i0.509

Net cash flows from o eratin activities 14 4,363,586

Purchase of PPE & intan ible assets 12 (3 r.oB6,r s9)

Net cash flows used in investin activities
Net incre asel (decrea se) in cash & cash

e uivalents
(26,7 22,57 3)

Cash And Cash E uivalents At 1 JulY ll 42,220,905

Cash And Cash E uivalents At 3O June 1l 15,498,332

4

14.531 ,399

9

Cash flows from investin activities

(3 r,o8 6,r s 9)



l8StatementofComparisonofBudget&ActualAmountsfortheYearended30June2023.

I Treasury

% of.

utilisation

16%

L The I1% on Receipts is attributed to delay disbursement offundsfrom The Nationa

)iZ,bSZ,Sft is inirease due to supplementary appropriation.II

5

Performance

dilferencec0

Actual on

arable basisOriginal:budget

Iftlts.
I(shs.IGIN.

f=d/ce=(ds=(a+liA

Revcnue 11%213,953 09326,984,888240,937 981i 02,097,918138,840,063GovernrnentTrarsfers tomthe Co 11%273,953 09326,984 888240,937,981t02,097,918138,840,063
Total Revenue

Ex e nses 4, 691,0'1214,531,39919,228,4119, 036,22810, t92,243ods and servicesUse of 55%2,263,0002,13'.1 ,0005,000 0005,000,000
EDSESBoard 70%3,496,6089,263,51211, 760,12011,760 120

Sta{ICosts 71%10,456,68025,531,91135,988 s919 036 22826 952,363enditureTotal lYo203,496 413t,452,971204,949,39093 061,690111,887,700eriodS us for the t5%773,863,23731,086,159204,949,390I 1 1,887,700
Ca e nditurelEx

Fiual'budget

b



County Government of Bungontrr
Bungoma Municipality
Annud Rep ort untl Financial Statcments for tlte year ended Junc 30, 2023

l9 Notes to the Financial Statcnrents

1. Genernl Information

Bungoma Municipality is established by and derives its authority and accountability from the Urban

Areas and Cities Act. The Municipality is under the County Govemment of Bungoma and is domiciled

in Kenya.

The Municipality principal activity is to develop the Municipality and Upgrade lives within the

Municipality.

2. Statemcnt of Compliance and Basis of Preparation
Tlre financial statements have been prepared on a lristorical cost basis exccpt for the measurement at re-

valued amonnts of certain items of property, plaut and equipment, marketable securities and financial

instmments at fair value, impaired assets at their estimated recoverable amdunts, and actuarially

determined liabilities at their present value. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with

International Public Sector AccountiDg Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions.

It also requires management to exercise judgment il the procesyf applying the entity's accounting

policies.The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or where assumptions and

estimatcs are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed inNote 5 ofthese financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared and presehted in Kenya Shillings, which is the functional

and reporting currency ofthe enliq,.

The financjal statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the State Corporations

Act (include any orher applicable legistafion), and Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards

(IPSAS). The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

3. Application of Nerv and reviscd standards (II'SAS)

New and amendeid standards and interpretations in issue eflective tn the year ended 30 June

2023.

IPSAS 41: Financial

Instruments

Applicable: 1't January 2023:

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the financial

reporting of financial assets and liabililies that will present relevant ar:d

useftll information to users of financial statements for their assessment of

the arnounts, timing and uncertainty of an Entity's future cash flows.

IPSAS 41 provides users of financial staternents with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:

(;

t.



Courttl' Governrnent of Bungonn
Bun goma lvlu n icipali ty
Annual Rcltort ontl Financial Statements fo ,' the year ardcd fune 30, 2023.

. Applying a single classification and rneasurctnent rnodel for

financial assets that considers the characteristics oftbe asset's cash

flows and the objectivc for which the asset is held;

. Applying a single forwardJooking expected credit loss model that

is applicable to all financial instruments subject to impairment

testing; and

. Applying an improved hedge accourting model that broadens the

hedging arangements in scope of the gui{ance. The rrodel

develops a strong link between an Entity's risk management

strategies and the accounting treatnent. for instruments held as part

of the risk management strategy..

Applicable: I't January 2023

The objective of this Standaid is to improve the relevance, faithful

representativcness and coriparability of the information that a reporting
/'

Entity provides in it('financial statements about social benefits. The

infonnation proyided should help users of the financial staternents and
/

general-purp.o(e financial reports assess:

(a) The 2ature ofsuch social benefits provided by the Entity'

(b) The key features ofthe operation ofthosc social bencfit schemes; aud

(c) The irnpact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's financial

perfonnance, financial position and cash flows.

IPSAS 42t Social

Benefits

Applicable: lst JanuarY 2023:

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the

componeDts of bonowing costs which were inadvertently omitted

when IPSAS 41 was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustative exampies on

hedging and credit risk which wcre inadvertently omitted when

IPSAS 4l was issued.

Amendments to Other

IPSAS resulting from

IPSAS 41, Financial

Instruments

't
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l) tt t t g om a M u nicip ality
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Standard

Other improvements

to IPSAS

Applicable ln January 202j

. IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial lttforntution about the General

Government Seclor. Amendrnents to refer to the latest System of

National Accounts (SNA2008).

. IPSAS i9: Employee Benefits Now deletes'the tenn composite social

security benefits as it is no longer defined in IPSAS.

. IPSAS 29: Financial irctntmenti'i Recogrtitiott and Measuremenl

Standard no longer included in the 2023 IPSAS haudbook as it is now

superseded by IPSAS 4l which is applicable from I't January 2023.

c) Amendnrents to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting

for financial guarantee contracts which were inadvertently omitted

when IPSAS 4l was issued.

d) Amendrnents to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying

financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS

rvhich were inadverlently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

ii.New and antended standards and interpretati dns in issue but nol yet efective in the year ended 30

June 202 3

Applicable 1" January 2025

The Standard requires,

8

IPSAS 43 Applicable I't trinuary 2025

The standard sets out thc principles for the recognition, measuretnent, presentation,

and disciosnre of leases. The objective is to ensure that lessees and lessors provide

relevant information in a manner that faithfully represents those uansactions. This

'information gives a basis for users of financial statemen8 to assess the effect that

leases have on the financial position, financial perfon:rance and cashflows of an

Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present infonnation

on right of use assets and lease liabilities.

IPSAS 44:

Non- Current

Assets Llcld for

Sale and

nrr.iti-.t at"IralFp*t



Courtty Govern ment of Bungonm
Bungoma Mun
Annual lleport

icipality
and Financial Statemenls Jbr tlte ycar ended June 30, 2023.

lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and thc depreciation of

such assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be presented

separately in the statemelrt of financial position and the results of discontinued

operations to be presented separately in the statement of financial perforrnance'

for sale to be measured at the
Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as heldDiscontinued

Operations

iii. Early adoption of standards

The Entity did uot early - adopt any new or arnendecl standards in the financial year,or the entity adopted

rlte fo owing standards edrly (sbre the stanclards, reason for early adoption and impact on entity's

Jinanci a I stalements.)

9



County Gove rtment of Bungoma
B t.tttgo nn M un icipality
Attnual Reltotl antl Financial Statements for llte year ended lune 30, 2023.

(Notes lo linancial statcntents continued)

4. SignificantAccountingPolicies

a) Rcvenuc rccognition

i) Revcnuc from non-exchangc transactions

Tronsfersfrom o ter governuent entities

Reverrues fronr non-exchange tra[sactions witli other governmer]t eutities are measured at fair value

and recognized on obtaining contlol of the asset (cash, goods, services and property) if the hansfer is

free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential related to the asset

will flow to lhe Entit.v and can be measured reliably. To the extent that there is a related condition

attached that would give rise to a liabiliry to repay the amount, the amount is recorded in the statement

of financial position and realised in the statement of financial pcrfonnance ou"r'ih" usefut life of the

assets that has been acquired using such fi:nds.

ii) Rcvenue from exchangc transactions ./.

Interesl inconte

Interest income is accrued using the effective yield metlod. The effective yield discounts estimated

fuhlre cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net canying amount.

The method applies this yield to the priucipal outs.tanding to detennine interest income for each period.

b) Budget information

The original budget for FY 2022/23 was approved by the County Assembly on August 2022

Subsequent revisions or additional appropriatious lvere nade to the approved budget in accordance witlr

specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional appropriations are added to the

original budget by the City/\4unicipality upon receiving the respective approvals in order to conclude

the final budget. Accordingly, the Municipality recorded additional appropriations of 102,097,918

(Aruount) or 2023 (Date) fbllowing the goveming body's apploval.

The CityA{unicipality's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expendihrre

disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis using a

classification bascd on the nature of expenses in the stateme[t of financial perfomance, whereas the

budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial statements were recast frorn the accrual

basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget.

A comparison ofbudget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approvc<J budget, is

then presented in tlle statement of comparison of br"rdget and actual amounts.

l0
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All property, plant and equiprnent are stated at cost less accumulated depreciatiorr and iurpaiment

losses. cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the iterns' when

significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the

Ciryllvlunicipality recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useflil lives and depreciates

them accordilgly. Likewise, when a rnajor inspection is perfomred, its cost is recognized iD the canying

amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recog ition criteria are satisfied' All other

repair and maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficit as incurred' where an asset is acquired

in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair

value.

c) Intangible assets

Intangible assets accluired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible assets

acquircd in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of tt-re exchange' Following initial

recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less anY accumulated amortization and accumulated

impairmentlosses.Intemallygeneratedintangibleassets,excludiigcapitalizeddevelopmentcosts,are

not capitalized and cxpcnditure is reflected in surplus or deficit in the period in wilich the expenditure

isincurred.Theusefullifeoftheintangibleassetsisas,pe.ssedaseitherfiniteorindefinite.

d) Financialinstruments

IpSAS 4l addresses the classification, measwement and de-recognition offinancial assets and financial

liabilities, intoduces new rules for hedg6 accounting and a new impairment rnodel for financial assets.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial

liabilityorequityinstrumentofarrothcrentity.Atinitialrecognition,theentitymeasuresafinancial

asset or financial liabllityAits fair valuc plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial

liability not at fair value through surplus or deficit, trausactiolt costs that are directly attributable to the

acquisition or issu'6 of the financial asset or finaucial liability'

Financial assets

Classification of financial assets

The entiry classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through

nct assets/ equity or fair value through surplus and deficit on the basis of both the entity's managenent

model for financial assets and the contractuaI casl'r flow charactedstics ofthe financial asset' A financial

asset is tneasured at amortized cost when the financial asset is held within a management model whose

objective is to hold finaucial assets in ordel to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual te ns

of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payrnents ofpri[cipal and

icipulity
antl Financial Sldtemehts Jbr tl1
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interest on tlie principal outstanding. A financial asset is nreasured at fair value through net assets/ ecluity

if it is held within the management nrodel whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual

cashflows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on

specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments ofprincipal aud interest on the principal amount

outstalding. A financial asset shall be rneasured at fair value tluough surplus or deficit unless it is

rneasured at ag:ortized cost or fair value through net assets/ equity unless an entity has made irrevocable

election at initial recognition for particular inveshnents in equity instrulnents.

Subsequcnt measurclncnt

Based on the business rnodel and the cash flow characteristics, the entity classifies its financial assets

into arnortized cost or fair value categories for financial instruments. Movcme}ts in fair value are

presented in either suqplus or deficit or through net assets/ equity subject to certain criteria being met.

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flo#s where those cash flows represeut

solely payments of principal and interest, and that are not designated at fair value through surplus or

deficit, are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss oq,an instrument that is subsequently measurcd

at amortized cost and is not part ofa hedging rclationdfiip is recognized in profit or loss when the asset

is de-recognized or iurpaired. Interest income florir these financial assets is included in finance income

using the effective iuterest rate method.

Fair value through net asscts/ cquity ''

Financial assets that are held for co]lection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial

assets, where the asscts' cash flows represent solely payments ofprincipal and interest, are measured

at fair value tluough net ass6ts/ equity. Movements in the car'rying amount are taken through net

assets, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange

gains and losses ryhich are recognized i:r surplus/deficit. lnterest income from these financial assets is

included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through surplus or deficit

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or fair value through net assets/ equity

are measured at fair value through surplus or deficit. A business model where the entity rnanages

financial assets witl.r the objective of realizing cash flows through solely the sale of the assets u,ould

lesult in a fair value through surplus or deficit model.

Trade and other reccivables

Trade and other reccivables are recognized at fair values less allowanccs for auy uncollectible an]ounts.

Trade and other receivabtes are assessed for impairment on a corrtiuuiug basis. An estimate is uracle of

doubtflll receivables bascd on a review ofall outstauding amotlnts at the ycar end.

t2
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Impairment

The entity assesses, on a forwardJooking basis, the expected credit loss ('ECL') associated with its

fir1ancial assets carried at amortized cost and fair value tlrrough net assets/equity' Tlre entity recognizes

a loss allowance for such Iosses at each reporting date. critical esthlates aud significant judgments

made by managelrlent in detemining the expected credit loss (ECL) are set out in No'e xx'

Financial liabilities

Classification

Theentityclassifiesitsliabilitiesassubsequentlytrreasuredatamortizedcostexceptforfinancial

liabilities measured through prolit or loss

e) Invcntories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognitior:. To the extent tliat inventory was received thlough

non-exchange tansactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inveutory is its fair value

at the date of acquisition. costs incurred in bringing each product io its present location and conditions

are accountcd for, as follows:

Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted averag/cost nrethod

Fiuished goods and work in progress: cost of diiect materials and labour and a proportion of

manufacturing overheads bascd on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs'

Afterinitialrecognition,inventoryismea,suredatthelowerofcostandnetrealizablevalue.However,

to the extent that a class of inventory id'distributed or deployed at no charge or for a nominal charge,

that class of inventory is nreasured'at the lower of cost and current rcplacement cost Net realizable

valueistheestimatedsellingpriceintheordinarycourseofoperations,lesstheestirnatcdcostsof

completion and the estima/d costs necessary to make the sale, exchange, or distribution. Inventories

are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or consurnption in the ordinary course of

operations of the,MuniciPalitY.

f) Provisions

provisions are recognized when the cityMunicipality has a present obligation (legal or constructive)

asaresultofapastevent,itisprobablethatanoutflowofresourcesembodyingeconomicbenefitsor

Servicepotentialwillberequiredtosettletheobligationandareliableestimatecanbemadeoftlre

anrountoftheobligation.WheretheCity/Municipalityexpectssomeorallofaprovisiontobe

reimbursed, for example, under an insurance conuact, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate

assetonlywhenthereimbursementisvirtuallycertain.Theexpenserelatingtoanyprovisionis

presented in the statement of financial performance net of any reimbursement'

icipality
and Financial Stdteme ts for tlle )'

13



Corttttlt Government of Bungomn
B tttgo nta l[un icipulity
Annual Relsort and Financiol Statentents Jbr tlte year cnied June 30, 2023

g) Social Benefitr^

Social benefits are cash tansfers provided to i) specific individuals and / or households that meet the

eligibility criteria, ii) mitigate the effects ofsocial risks and iii) Address the need of society as a whole.

The entity recognises a social benefit as an expelrse for the social benefit scheme at the salne time that

it recognises a liability. The liability for the social benefit schenre is rneasured at the best estimate of
the cost ((he social benefit payrnents) thal the enlity will incur in fulfilling the present obligations

represented by the liability.

i) Corrtingcnt assets

The City/Municipality does not recognize a colrtingent asset but discloses details of a possible asset

whose existence is contingent on the occurrenc€ or Don-occurrence of one or more uncertain fuhtre

events not wholly within the control of the City/I4unicipality in the notes to the financial statemerts.

Contingcnt assets are asscssed continually to ensure that developments are appropliately reflccted in

the frnancial statements. Ifit has becorne virtually certain tlrat an inflow of economic bencfits ol service

potential will arise and the asset's value cin be measured

reliably, the asset and the related revenue are recognized in tbe financial statements of the period in

which the change occurs

j) Naturc and purpose of rcservcs

The CityMunicip6ility creates and maintains rcserves in tenns of specific requirements

l) Employee benefits- Retiremcnt bencfit plans

f ire CityMunicipality provides rctircmcnt benefits for its ernployees and dircctols. Defined

contribution plans are post-ernployrlrent benefit plans undcr which the City/Municipality pays fixed

l4

h) Contingent Iiabiliti cs

The City/Municipality does rrot recognize a contingent liability, but discloses details ofany

contingencies in the notes to the financial statements unless the possibility ofanbutflow ofresources

ernbodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

k) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The City/Municipaliry recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The

effects of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is

impractical.
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contributions into a separate firnd and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further

conuibutions if the cityMunicipalily does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits

relating to employee service in the current aDd prior periods. The contributions to scheme obligations

for the payrnent of retirernent benefits are charged against iuconre irr the year in which they becotne

payable. Defined benefit plans are post-ernployment benefit plans other than defined-contribution plaDs'

The defined benefits are actuarially valued tri-annually on the projectcd unit credit method basis'

Deficits identified are recovered tl[ough lump sum payments or increased future contributions on

proportional basis to all participating ernployers. The contributions and lump sum paymerlts teduce (he

post-employment benefit obligation.

m) Foreign currency translctions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the nrling rate of exchange on the date

of thc transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign c'urrency are reporled irr the

statement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that date' Exchange

differences arising ftom the settlement of creditors, or from the rdforting

of creditors at rates different from tbose at which they were initially recorded during the period' are

recognized as income or cxpenses in the period in which(hey arise'

./
n) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qu,alifuing assets as part ofproperty, plant and equipment. Suclr

bonowing costs are capitalized over the 'period during which the asset is being acquired or constructed

and borrowings have been incuned. capitalization ceases when construction of the asset is complete'

Further borrowing costs are cliarged to the statement offinancial performance'

o) Related parties

The cityAvlunicilaity ."gura. a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exerr control

individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the city/lrilunicipality' or vice versa'

MembersofkeymanagementareregardedasrelatedpartiesandcomprisetheBoardmembers,tlre

City/Municipality Managers and CityMunicipality Accountant'

p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cashandcashequivalentscoraprisecashonhandandcashatbank,slrort-temdepositsoncalland

highly liquid investments with an original maturity of thlee months or less, which are readily convertible

toknownanountsofcashandaresubjecttoinsignificantriskofchangesinvalue.Bankaccount

balances include amounts held at various commercial banks at the end of the financial year' For the

15
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putposes ofthese financial statements, cash and cash equivalerits also include short-tem caslr inrpresls

and advances to authorised public officers an<Vor institutions which were not sumendered or accounted

for at the end of the financial year.

q) Comparative figurcs

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been arnertded or rer:onligtlred

to confonn to tlre required changes in presentation.

r) Evcnts aftcr the reporting pel iod

Events after the reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between

the reporting date and the date when the financial statements are authorized for issue. Two types of

events can be identified:

(a) Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting.date (adjusting events after

the reporting date); and

(b) Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the r.Fporting dale Qrcn-adjusting events

after the reporting date).

The City/Municipality should indicate whether there are malerial adjusting and non- adjustiDg events

after the leporting period.

s) Curreucy
The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs.) and the values rounded off to the

nearest shilling.

5. Significant j udgnrcnts and sourcei of cstimation uncertainty

The preparation of the CityA,luriicipality's furancial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reportcd amounts of

revenues, expeuses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at (he end of the

reporting period. However, uncertainry about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes

that require a mlterial adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in fuh.rre

periods.

Estimates and assumptions.

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation unccrtainty at the

reportir:g date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the canying atnounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year, ate described below. The City/Municipality based

its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were

prepar.ed. I'Iowever', existing circumstances and assumptions about future developurettts uray change

due to rrarket changes or circunrstances arising beyond the coutrol of the CityMlrnicipality. Such

changes are reflected in tlie assumptions whetl they occur.

l6
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Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and r.esidual values <.rf assets are assessed using the following indicators to inforn

potential future use and value from disposal:

i) The condition of the asset based on the assessmcnt of experts employed by thc

CigAvlunicipalitY.

ii) The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and

processes.

iii) The natue of the processes in which the asset is deployed'

iv) Availability of funds to replace the asset'

v) Changes in the market in relation to the asset'

Notes to the Financial State,flent

6. Transfers from the County Government

7. Use ofGoods and Services

844,689

8. Staff costs

1 998,186.90
Transfers from Coun Govt. - Develo mel1t

23 986,700.80on behalf of theCoP b
26,984 887.70Total

lics and servicesConlmrnication,
Donrestic travel and sub e

1 896,820
CTNCS

lies and servicesFIos lta

lies and servicesIOfice and
720,550enses eOther o

1,860
Bank Char

Descrl tion

8,263,5 12.00
Salaries aud wages

1'l

120,000

5,029,s l0

5,917,970
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9. Board expenses

10. Deprcciatiotr and anrortization

1 1. Cash and caslt equivalents

Detailed analysis of the cash and cash equivaldnts are as follows:

Dcscription 202212023

Kshs.

Travel and accomrnodation 2,'13't,000.00

Total 2,737,000.00

l)escri oIt 2022t2023

I(shs

Property, plant and equipment 7'7'7,153.98

Total dep reciatiorr lnd amortization 777,153.98

Descri tion 2022t2023

l(shs

Current account 1s,498,33 1 .96

Total cash and cash cquivalents 15,498,331.96

202212;02)

Financial institution Acggu nt numbdr Ks hs

a) Current account

Faurily Bank-UlG ,077000039017 321,462

Family Bank-UDG ,0770000390i 8 t2,264,460

Family Bank-RetentioD AccouDt ,0770000042s14 7,9t2,410

Grand total 75,498,332

l8
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12. ProPertY, Plant and EquiPment

Civil lorl<s &

shs

a05

,r54

2.5Yo,

As at 30
tl' Junc 2022 31,086,159

A dditions 31,086,159

As at3 0'h June 2023

eciation and imPairmentDepr 777,754

Depreclatlon 117,154777,754
As at30 th June 2023

NBV as at 3 oth June 2022 3 0,3 09,00530,309,005
at 3otr'June 2023NBV as

19
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13. Trade and other payables fronr exctrange trausactions

2022/2023

2,9r0,609
2,91O,609

De s cription

Retentions

Total trade and otlre r payables

Ageirrg analysis: Cur-r'e nt FY
ljnder one au' 2 910,609

2,910,609

) 2DO

Ks hs

S us/ (deficit) for the ycar belbre tax /
675,822.93

Adius tcd for
Dcprqciation
Increase in payables 2 910,609.00
Nct cash florv fro nt opcrating:rctiviti'cs 4,363,585.90

7_0

14. Cash generatcd from operations

Total

(771 ,ts3.98)
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Notcs to the Financial Statetltetlts

15. Relatetl party balances

a) Nature of related party relatiotlships

Entities and other parties related to the Municipality include those parties who have ability to

exercise control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions'

Related parties include managernent persomel, their associates and close family members'

The Municipality/scheme is related to the following entities:

a) The CountY Government.

b) The Parent County Government Ministry' 
,,

c) County AssernblY.

d) I(ey management.

e) Municipality Board. /.

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue

trading. The credit risk associated with these receivables is rninirnal aud the allowance for

uncollectible amounts that the city/Municipality has recognised in the financial statetneuts is

16. Financial risk management

The CityMunicipality,s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and

liquidityrisksandeffectsofcharrgesinforeignculTency.TheCity/\,Iunicipaliry,soverallrisk
*urrug"rrr"ot prograrlme fo",ts", o" unpredictabjliiy of changes in the busiDess environment

and seeks to mini[rise the potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting

acceptable levels of risk. The ciryMunicipality does not hedge any risks and has in place

policies to ensure that credit is only exlended to customers with an established credit history'

ih" CiryMrrnicipality,s financial .igk'*unog",r,.nt objectives a,d policies are detailed below:

I. Credit risk

The city/Municipality hu, 
"*pJrrrr" 

to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty wili be

unable to pay amounts igfull when ilue. credit risk arises from cash and casb equivalents, and

deposits with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial

investments.

Management asstsses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial

position,pastexperienceandotherfactors.lndividualrisklimitsaresetbasedonintemalor
external assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors' The amounts presented in

the statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtfut receivables, estirnated by

the CityMurricipality,s management based on prior experience and tlreir assessnrent of tlre

current economic envirorunent.

21
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considered adequate to cover any potentially inccoverable amouDts.'fhe City/\4unicipality has

significant concentration of credit risk on arnounts due fi'otn xx-x.

The CityMunicipatify Board sets policies and objectives and lays dowtr parameters within

which the various aspects of credit risk managemerrt are operated.

II. Liquidity risk managemcnt

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk managenrent rests wilh the Ciry/\4unicipality

Manager, who has built an appropriatc liquidity t'isk management framewot* for the

rnarlagernent of the CityA4unicipality's short, rlediuur and long-tenn liquidity management

requirements. The City/Municipality lt'lanages liquidity risk through continuous rnonitoring of

forecasts and actual cash flows.

The table below represents cash flows payable by the Municipality uirder non-derivative

financial liabilities by their remaining contractual n-rahrrities at the rgporting date. The amounts

disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

III. Markct risk

The Board has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by

the City/lvlunicipality on an ougoing basis, evaluate.and test the design and effectiveness of its

intemal accounting and operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising ftom changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices

and foreign exchange rates which will irffect the City/\4unicipality's incon.re or the vaiue of its

holding of financial instruments.. The objective of market risk managernent is to rnanage and

control market risk exposures rvithin acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Overall responsibility for rnanaging rnarket risk rests with the Audit and Risk Managernent

Committee. The City/Ir4unicipality's Finance Department is responsible for the developrnent

of detailed risk,.rnanagement policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and fusk

Management Committee) and for the day-to-day implerneutation of those policies. There has

been no change to the City/I4unicipality's exposure to market risks or the tnanner in which it

n')allages and measures the risk.

1'l



Bungoma Il[t
Annual llepo

micipality
rt and Financio

County Goventment of Bttttl;trnt u

I Slnlctrtcnrs fttr the year cndal lune 30'

20 Appendices

Appcndix 1. Progress on Follo\v trp of Auditors Recommendations'

This is the first time we are being audited'

Municipal Manager.

2023.
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b. i Development Crants

c

SignettbytheHeatlofAccountsoftheEntityantlthetransferringEntities

FY 20xx/20xx
Indicate the FY to which the amounts relateBank Statement DateRecurrent Grantsa

x)il'lotal

Indicate the FY to which the alnounts relate

x)LxTo tal
Indicate the FY to which the amounts relateAmount flfths.)Bank Statement Dats',Direct Payments

xxxTotal

24

Appendix 2: Inter EntitY Transfers

Amount fKshs.)

Amount (lGhs.)Banl< State ment Date
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Appendix 3: Bank Reconciliation

Bungoma MuniciPalitY- UDG

ACCOUN T NAME: UDG
o39014

Bank Reconcillia tion statement

Balance as Pe r Banl< Certificate

i L--

LESS 1. PaYment in cas h bool< not Yet recorded in

Ban k State me nt U

2. ReceiPts in Bank state_me,l.! not_ ye!

i"."iJ"a in Cash Bool<'(Note-2]

sented Chequ ES Note 1

ADD
3.Payments

recorded i
! n B.q !K sla!9 me 1! .t',9i-
n the Cash Book Note 3

4 . ReceiPts in Cash Boo l<n

above Reconcil tio n i s co-rre ct

Signatu re -.... Designati -)-on.l..' {^!{rR

rded in

Ba n!: S!.9I9m9r'-t- .- - -
Banl< Balance as perE"t[ eooK as at 3olo6/?o?3

ified the Bank Balance in the cash Book with the Bank statement and that the

#r,*
Ir

Date -!fJ.i l2-o:-gccou ntant

l(sHs
L2, 264,460.40

L2,264,460 -4O
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Bungoma Municipality- Special Purpose Retention Account

ACCOUNT NAME: Specila Purpose Retention Account

FACILITY A/C NO: 'o77OOOOq25t4

Bank Reconcilliation statement as al 30/06/2023

Balance as per Bank Certificate

LESS 1. Payment in cash book not yet record ed in

Bank Statement( Unpresented Cheques)

2. Receipts in Bank Statement not yet

recorded In Cash Book.(Note 2)

ADD

3.Payments in Bank Statement not_yet

recorded in the Cash Book(Note 3)

4. Receipts in Cash Book not yet recorded in

Bank Statement

Bank Balance as per Cash Bool( as at30/0612073

(Note 1

KSHS KSHS

2,9t2,409.63

!

I certify that I have verified the Bank Balance in the cash Bookwiththe Bank statement and that the

above Reco nciliation is correct.

Designation
,sl - "i-

l.hiI.a..ountant Date <|J-;-; :lk;

26

2,912,409.63

.}er
Signa ture.......... \ry,-,....
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Annual RePort and Fitt

ACCOUNT NAME: UIG

FACrLlw A/C NO:

Bank Reconcilliation stateme nt as al 30 I 06 / 2023

-/
0770000390L7

I

..,." - -. 
._.*i

I
..-.- -, 

---..i

-++-

Balance as Per Bank Certificate

LESS 1. PaYment in cash book not Yet recorded in

Bank Statement( Unpresented Chequ

2. Receipts in Bank Statement not yet

recorded In Cash Book.(N

ADD

3.Payments in Bank Statement not

recorded in the Cash-899k(tlq!9 l-)

4. ReceiP ts in Cash Book not Yet recorded in

Bank Statement

Banl< Balance as per Cash Bool( as at30/A6/2023'

a bove Reco ncil atio n is correct.

Signature

es)( Note 1)

ote l) _

t

t--
t certify that I have ve.Ileo the gank Balan.. inlth cash Aook with the Bank.statement and that the

-.." 
- -o.,lenut'itr"4ffi; l-* - ---i

Accountant Date o1

I(SHS1(SHS

321,461.93

32!,46].93

2i

'----
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BI.'NCOMN BIIANCH

P.o BOX 74145 -00200

06rH Jt'ly 2021

COUNTY COVERNMENT OF BUNGOMA

BUNGOMA MUNICIPAL BOARD

P.o Box 437-50200 Bungoma

Dear Sir/Madam,

ol\rlA tvl UNICIP ALITY .COUNTY
r) E: CERTIFICATE OF.BA NK BALANCE -BUNG

URBAN INSTITUTTONAL GRANT (UtG)

ln reference to yotlf letter date d 3'h July 2023 on the above, herein below see our findings'

Account balance as at 306 June 2023 was

For any clarification, kinclly contact the undersigned'

Resards,

;;;;; on behalf of FamilY Bank Limited'

K LT \)
\rBP'N hNCf

D I\ oM6B&
!i!r.Dsct

epk ech Beatrice
CH OPE ONS MAN GER. UNGO

R,AN

Family tsank itd. Nead office, Famlly Eank Towers

P.O. Box 74145' 00200 Nairobi,tvlulndi Mbingu Sveet

Tel:020 325 2000, Cell: + 254 703 095 000

Email: in!o@famiiybank.to.ke, www'lamilybank co ke

BALANCE
ACcoUNT NUMBER

321 ,461.93
077000039017

Translotmrng Ltle'



H,r.m,[,Iy,ue;:lq
BTJNGOMA BRANCH

'p.o sox 74t45 -oo2oo

o6rH July 2023

COUNTY COVERNMENT OF BUNCOMA
BUNGOMA MUNICIPAI. BOARD

P.o Box 43?-50200 Bungoma

Dear Sir/Ir4adam,

RE: CERTIFICATE OF BANK BALANCE -BUNGOII,IA Tl,IUNICIPALITY-SPECIAL
PURPOSE RETENTION ACCOUNT
ln reference to your letter datcd 3ft July 2023 on the above, herein below see our findings,

Account balance as at 30th Junc 2023 was

ACCOUNT NUMBER BAIA.NCE

077000042514 2,912,409.63

Fbr any clarification, kindly contact the undersigned

Regards,
For and on behalf of Family Bank Limited.

FAMILY BANK LTD
D NGOMA BRANCII

irluue.t

Famlly Bank Ltd, Head Offlce, Family Bank Towers.
P.O. 8ox 74145 .00200 Nairobi,Muindi Mbingu Srreet
Tel: 020 325 2000, Cell: + 254 703 095 000
Ernail: inf o@familybank.ro.ke, www.f amilybank.co.ke

TrofiS lot tt 1'n52 t- 1'

Chepkoech Beatrice
BRANCH OPERATIONS MANAGER -BIJNGOMA

t



GENETUL LI|DGER BUNGOMA MUNICIPAI BOAITD 2023

CIIDuParticulzrrs

Revenues
2,998,187Transfcrs from counry govcrnmcnt

23,986,701Paymcnts by Counry on behalf of thc cntiry
2,910,609Tradc payablcs(Unpaid Rctcntion

1,801Famil Bank- Spccial Purpose Rctcntion account
61,184Bank-UIGF

42,157,92012,4!460
30,309,005Acquisition Of assets(propcrty Plant & cquipment

Depreciation and amortization
'7'77,154Property, plaut and equipment

Usc of Goods xnd Serviccs
120,000Communication, supplies and scrviccs

5 029,5 l0Dornestic tlavcl and snbsistence

Trainin ex ns es

5,91't ,970Hospitality supplics and services

Officc and general supplies and services
720,550Other operating expenses (Specfy \

Bank Ch

Staff costs
8,263,512Salaries and wa s

7,737,000Travel and accommodation

72,776,407'Iotal.A.rnount

2,912,410

321,462

Family Bank-UDG

1,896,820

844,689

1,860

Board expcnscs

72,116,407



ACCOUNT NAIVIE: UDG

FACILITY A/C NO:

Ba nk Reconcilliation statement as at 30/05/2023

Balance as per Bank Certificate

LESS 1. Payment in cash book not yet recorded in

Bank Statement( Unpresented Cheques)(N

2. Receipts in Bank Statement not yet

recorded in Cash Book.(Note 2)

ADD

3.Payments in Ba nk Statement not yet

recorded in the Cash Book(Note 3)

4. Receipts in Cash Book not yet recorded in

Bank Statement

Bank Balance as per Cash BooK as ar30l06l2o23

Balance as per Bank Certificate

LESS 1. Payment in cash book not yet recorded in

Bank Statement( Unpresented Cheques)(N

2. Receipts in Bank Statement not yet

recorded in Cash Book.(Note 2)

ADD

3.Payments in Bank Statement not yet

recorded in the Cash Book(Note 3)

4. Receipts in Cash Bool< not yet recorded in

Bungorna IVlunicipality- U DG

077000039018

KSHS

ote 1)

K5H5

72,764,460.OO

12,264,460.OO

above Reconciliation is correct

Signature Designation Accountant Date

LESS 1. payment in cash book not yet recorded in Bank statemnt( upresented cheques)

4. RECEIPT IN CASHBOOK NOT RECORDED IN BANt( STATEMENT

Bungoma MuniciPality- UIG

ACCOUNT NAME: UIG

FACILITY A/c NO: 077000039017

Bank Reconcilliation statement as at 30/06/2023

ote 1)

AMOUNT
PAYEE

TOTAL

KSHSl(sHs

321,461.93

I certify that I have verified the Bank Balance in the cash Book with the Bank statement and that the

CHQ NO.



I certify that I have verified the Bank Balance in the cash Book with the Bank statement and that the

above Reconciliation is correct

Signatu re Designation Accountant Date

LESS 1. payment in cash book not yet recorded in Bank statemnt( upresented cheques)

PAYEE CHQ NO AI\4OU NT

TOTAL

4. RECEIPT IN CASHBOOI( NOT RECORDED IN BANK STATEIVIENT

Bungoma Municipality- Special Purpose Retention Account

ACCOUNT NAME: Specila Purpose Retention Account

FACILITYA/C NO: 077OO004ZSL4

Bank Reconcilliation statement as at 30/06/2023

Ba nk State ment

Banl< Balance as per Cash Bool( as at3010612023

Balance as per Bank Certificate

LESS L. Payment in cash book not yet recorded in

Bank Statement( U npresented Cheques)(N

2. Receipts in Bank Statement not yet

recorded in Cash Book'(Note 2)

ADD

3.Payments in Bank Statement not yet

recorded in the Cash Book(Note 3)

4. Receipts in Cash Book not yet recorded in

Ba nk Statement

Bank Balance as per Cash Bool( as ar30lo'l2o23

32L,461.93

t(5HS KSHS

2,972,409.63

2,972,409.63

ote 1)

I certify that I have verified the Bank Balance in the cash Book with the Bank statement and that the

Designation Accountant Date

LESS 1. payment in cash bool< not yet recorded in Bank statemnt( upresented cheques)

AIVIOU NTcl-lQ NOPAYEE

TOTP,L

4. RECEIPT II{ CASHBOOK NOT RECORDED IN BANK STATENNENT

above Reconciliation is correct.

5ignature........



,'II"
(]O t'\TY GOVERNIVIENT OF BTI\GOI,IA
ll t r\COM;\ I,l LINICIPALITY
PROCRESS REPORT ON SE'TILEN,IENT OII PENT'INC t]IL LS AS AT 3I ST DECEMBER, 2023

S/No Supplicr/CoEtrnctor Nime
LPO/LSO

Conmct No.

Datc of lhc LPO/LSO
Conract No,

lnvoice no. D.(sils of lvork Pcrformcd
Outstanding Pending Bill
AmouEi a. of30th Junc,

_ 2023 (IGhs)

Amourt Paid
(IGIs.)

Outstnn(ling l,ending Dilt
Amoun( rs of30th Junq

(l(shs.)

I} C=A-ll
I 3 5 t2166 06t04/2023 ) supply and dclivcry ofsalitary ilems 96,350.00

ShDdard Group PLC 1169851 t9to4n023 444738 t9/04/2023 provision for spacc ordcr for advcfliscmcflt
83,080.00

Slandard Croup PLC 16639 t0 20104n02) 4i0998 02t02n023 provision for spacc ordcr for advefllscmenl
216,920.00 216,920.00

4 Aliican Tooch Safaris dircct TN042105t402 2610512023 air travel for ICPAK traini g mornbasa 41,2C0.00 41,2Gr.00
5 Krkr Hotcl t'7 69862 26/06/2021 i4ts 26t06t2023 hotcl and confcrcncc facililics 148,0C,0.00 148,000.00
6 Courly Crcrn Hotel I7698J6 03i06/2021 l3i0ll190t 03/0612021 hotel and confcrcncc facilitaes 19,950.00 19,950.C0

Dot Engincenng Corrsmrction l5 l2l6 r t4n3n023 33t34 supply and dcli ofstationcry itcms 298.670.00
Sawan Horel r?69860 26N6!2027 hotcl and confcrcncc facililics 1@,000.00 160,00c.00t Afilcar Touch Safafls dircct 0v12n022 TIN0422 l747 28/| tD022 air trawl for ICPAK rainin g mo rbasa 40.170.00 40,170.CO

r0 Collnty Orccn Hotcl r769856 01i04i2023 101 03t04/2023 hotcl and confcr.ncc facilities 50,000.00 50,000.00

II
Kenya lnstitutc of Supplics

Managcncnt (KISM) dircct KrsMQT28430 l ltn02]' Annual rcncwal ofKISM nrcmbcrsh rp

4,000.00 4,003.00

lnlrrrurc of Cffrified Public

Accounlants drrcct 03/04i2021 lNv24 t8l8 otnln02t annual subscnption
22,ACo.@

ti KenYa Urbln Fonrn {KUF) t769365 l2t1(,i2013 0J/06i20t1 rcgislralron lics (KUF) ryorkshop 140,000.o0 140.000.00

'l otrl
1,320,740.N

298,570.C0

i,320,740.r10

S rgned b! Accountrng Oflicer

Srgncd:

Drtr invoiccd

salecom Solutions Ltd t2/04n02)

1
83,080.00

05rcAn023

| 1t 1n022

t2
22,400.C0

KUF-62t7029



COUN'I'Y GOVI|IINM ONT OF- I}TJFIGOM A

TI.IE MUNICIPALITY OF BUNGOMA
Couuty Works Office,
P.O BOX 437-50200,

Email: bgmunicipality039@gmail.com BUNGOMA

Telephone: +254700-892013 09tr'January,2023

TO;

STAFF MEMBERS (BUNGOMA MUNICIPAI,ITY)

NAME DESIGNATION

l. C.P.A Gabriel Kibiriti Manager

2. Caleb Kishombe Adrninistrator

3. Pascal Wakafura P.H.O

4. Michael Wekesi Finance Officer

5. Andrew Keya Physical Planner

, 6. Susan Misiko Accountant

7. Sarah Mutarna Office Adrninistrative Assistant

BOARD Mt,MBEIiS

Ms. facqueline Malomba - The Chairperson;

Hon. fohn Munyasia - Board Member;

Hon. Justus Mbinga - Board Member;

Hon. Edith Shitandi - Board Member;

Arch. Dauglas Sasita - CECM, LUPPFI&M;

IvIs. Christine Simiyu - CECM Rep. and Board Member

RE:-lnvitation to attend Benchmarking exercise in Wote Municipality, Makueni County.

You are hereby invited to attend a benchmarking exercise which will take place on l0'h January to
l4rh January 2023 atthe county Hotel.

Caleb Kishombe

Administrator - Bungoma Municipality

l)
2)

3)

4)

s)

6)

\./
!'; *.i: 4 z.,t\

1,.,t:.- -:il.' q,

}:V:.r,&Yr
"i-<-L*l1-\



C]OUNTY GOVERN M ITN'[' OF' BI']NGOMA

THE MUNICIPALITY OF BUNGOMA

BENCT{
uoTEI, ON 1OTI

DAY 1: Tucsd

TII JANU
GP RAIvI FO

TO 14

R T}OARI)
AR

ANI) STAFI..
23.IN

I{ELD
KUEN

AT CO
ICO

TY

I]NTY
UNTYROG

Y20 MAI JANU

VE

l0tl' Janua 2023

ARY

racrr,n'aton (s)
ACTIVITY/SESSION

TIME

8:30nttt- 9:00Ant

Manager Kintilili
liMunici

-CPA. Gabrie I Kibiriti'
Secretariat.

-lntroduction an d Clirnate scntng

Jtegistration

-IIon. CECM-Laruls, Urban,

Physical Plaruting and

I lousin

-His ExcellencY The Governor
-Opcning Remar ks:

9:iLAm- 10:0

I0:00Ant- 10:30Atrt

0Atrt

Manager. Kintilili
-C.P.A Gabrie I Kibiriri

Muttici ali
-Introduction to the programme

10:30Am - 11:00Ant

Health Break
11:00Am -l1:3OAm

Mutlici ali
Manager llote

- Consultative bet'a'cen theSession

Three Muni alitiesI 1:iLAm - l:00Prrt

Lunch Break
I:00 Pnr'2:00 Pm

Muttici ali
Manager ll/ole

-MuniciPaliry Operations
2:00 Ptn - 4:00 Pnt

Health BreaK
4:00Pnt

I

l lt



t)AY 2: \\/cd ncsd a 1l'r' .lanua 2023

ACTIVITY/SESSI ON

DAY Thursd lztt, .l I ntt:r 7023

I I:001m - 1:00Pnt

2:00Pnt - 3:00Pnr

FACII,I'TATOR( s)
1'Ill{E

CS John Ndombi
-Rccap of daY I und key learning

Arcas
8:O|Atrt - 8:30 Anr

Chairnan Board' lYotc

14unic Iit
.Visit to the Fruit Pllnt in Makucni

9:00 An - 10:30 Anr

Ilcalth Brcakt0:30Ant - 1I :00 Ant

lulunici. lit
Chairman Boord'll/ote-Visit to the Fnrit Plant in Maliueni

I 1:00Am - I2:4 SPnr

- 2:00PntI2:4
Choirnnn Boord- n/otu

Munic ol2:00Pm - 3:00Pnt

Manoger lVorc MunicipolitY

-Visit to the Frtrit Plant in Makueni

-Plenary Session3:00Pn-4:00Pnt
Ilcalth Breal(

4:00Pm

FACII,IT AIOIr(S)
AC'TIVITY/SESSION

CPA Cabriel Ki bit-iti

Areas
Recap of daY 2 and keY learning8:3LAnt - 9:00Anr

Manager Wole MuniciPo lity
-Reporting Structures trf
Munici alitics

9:0|An- l0:30Ant

Goverrutr Makueni CounlY
-Mceting the Govcmor's Office

Arch. Douglas Sas it a- CC Elt'l

LUPPH,

-PIenary

Counl
-Closing l{emiuks3:00Pnt-4:001'm

Ilcalth Rrcal(

2

Lunch Ilrcal<

i

I

i

I Icalt h Brcal<

Lunch Brcalt

CotnlY Secrel0rY-14akuen i

4:00Prtt



rY 4: FridaY , l31h Janua 023

IME

8:30Am - 9:00Ant

9:00Am - I0:30Ant Functions ofthe Board

-Experience Sharing alnoullg the

Mun icipalities

3:00Pm-4:00Pnt

ACTIVTTYi SESSION F'ACTLITA'IOR(S)

Recap ofdaY 3 and keY learning

Areas

IIe*lth Brcak

Health Break

Manager -Wote Munici Pali tY

Board Chair-Kintilili
Munici ali

4:A0Pm

DAY 5. 14'r'll .Ianua 2023
ACTIVITY/SE SSTON

lulutlici ali
Chairntan- Kuttilili

10:30Am- 1I:0OAnt

tl:00Ant- l:001'nt

Lunch Break

lir-Wote MuniciMana

Coun

-Plenaly

-Closing Remarks

1:00Pm -2:00Pnt

2:00Pnr - 3:00Pnt

TIME

CI'A Gabriel Kibiriti

FACILITATOR(s)

Recap ofdaY 4 and keY learning8:3LAnr - 9:00Ant

Governor -Makueni CountY-ravelling to Fruit Plant in Makueni9:|LAttt - 10:30Attt

Ilealth Break
10:30Ant - 11:00Attt

Governor - Makuen i Coun4t-Meeting at the fruit Plant in

Makuer.ri
l1:00Aru- 1:|OPttt

1:00Pm-2:00Pm

Governor -Makueni Cou
-Meeting at the ICT Par

to\ryn

k in Wote2:00Pnt - 3:00Pnt

C ounty Secretary-Makueni
Coun

-Closing CeremonY and DePature3:a0Pnr4:00Pnt

4:00Pnt

CPA GaLtriel Kibiriti

C oungt Sec relarY- Makuen i

Areas.

Lunch Brcal<

Brcakfleal



GENEITALLEDG ER BI]NGOMA IUTJNICIPAI ]] OARD 2023

CRParticulars
Revenues

2,998,"t81

DR

ov e!nlTIc n tTransfcrs from coun
23,986,701on bchalf of thc entiPa ents Coun

2,910,609Tradc blcs II aid Rctcntion
1,80r2,91 410Famil Bank- S cial P sc ]tctcr.rtion account

61,1 84121,462Famil Bank-UIG
42,15'7,92012,264 460Bank-UDGF

30,309,005isition Of asscts Plant & e ul nlcllt

De reciation and amortizxtion
7't7,ls4lant and Lll tP

Usc of Goods ,rnd Scrviccs
120,000lies and sen,icesCommunication, su

5,029,510Dorne stic travel aud subsistence
1,896,820Traini cllSCS

5,91'7,970itali SU lies and serviccsI,IO
844,689Office and eneral su lies and services
720,550Other cratln ec )enscs

1,860Bank Ch es

St:rff costs
8,263 5t2

ESSalaries and w

Board cx erlscs
2,737,000Travel and accoturnodation

72,176,40772,776,407Toral Amount



COUNTY GOVERNM IiN'I' OIT BUNGOMA

I}UNGOMA MUNICIPAI, I}OAIID.

Tclephone:

Ccll: +254- 0700892013

County Worl<s Olliccs
P.O BOX 437
BUNGOMA.
31rr', Janu:rry r2023.

-mnil: h ['r.? Un ali J ima . co ['E!.

LIIARNING TOUIT TO WOTE MUNICIPALITY MAKUIINI COUNTY ON IOIII ANt)

I4III.IANUARY 2023

Introduction

'l-he tean conrprisir.rg board rrembers, n'ranager, stall's arrd delegation tl'onr the ollice of the

gover.nor visitecl Makueli County- Wote Municipality tbr the learrring tour. '[he purpose of 1he

toLlr yas to benchmark on thc operationalization of Wote Municipality in the followillg al'easl

r7

i)

.i

tt.ti the Governor Lrrsaka and thc delegation

\





Arcas of focus

l . Ilstablishment and operationalization oI the mttnicipal board

Wote municipal boald is well established with Managel'as the Sccretary.

2. Status o1'transl'cr ol' functions

The rnunicipality is at the llnal stage of transl'er of functions especially; l{evenue, waste

manageulel'lt and inflrastructure developnrent.

3. costing and funding of tlre functions

Funding of programs is done by Makr,reni corurty goverumeut through Exchequer, World

Bank and KUSIP. Maktreni County governntent has allocatecl budget to furrd

developrnent projects snch as roads, Markets and Public Park within the Municipality.

4. staffing and reporting relationship

County govel'nlnent was in the process of deploying over 60 stafts to lhe nrunicipality in

various scctions. All stalfs reports directly to Municipal Manager.

5. perfomrance contracting

6. handling of the revenue fr.urction

Wote Municipality already has reveuue account and the n'Ianager as the receiver.

7. management of infrastructure

Municipality manages developrnent of infrastntcture with sortle assistance frotn County

ministries.

8. Budgeting / financial repolting and auditing by the municipality

9. General view and practice on the principal agency relationship between the municipality

and the county governlreut. Ilow does the rnunicipality relate with other county

departments

10. Board operatioll and cvaluation
F Are there specitrc and measurable assignments given to the boald and evaltrated to the

county government.?

P Status and functioning of board committees / public participation / citizen for a

11. Reparation and implementatiorr o1'the mtrnicipal by laws

Asset management

Which specific county office does the municipal board report to?

Challenges faced in operationalization of the urban areas and cities act and recotnmendations on

the way forward.

a



Projects touretl

1. The team tourcd makueni fruit proccssing plant and rvater bottling factory

The lactory pr.ovicles opportunities lbr local fi'uit tarmers to grow rvcalth, learn new technologies

on value addition. The plalt has capacity to process 5 uretric tolttles ol'raw lllallgoes producing

3,000 liters of ptrree (r'nango concentrate) per hour.

.l

ir
:iil

"{

I

I

';l

,.]

,1

At the./i"uit pt'ocessing Plant
2. The team also toured lvote green park and innovation hub

The project was r.rndertaken by Wote Municipality and consists of tbllowing amenities: green

recreatiolal spaces with various gardens with exotic trees and flowers, walking paths, lighting,

park paved opel air theatre, I'lot spots (wi-fi), lC'l innovatiott centre, children play ground,

public toilets, lbocl coults ancl slalls, low perimeter wail and solid waste managelnent system.
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Wole Public Park

Conclusion

1'he governor pledged to streamline both Bungoma and kimilili municipalities to enlrance a

better service delivery to the people.
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A5S ET REGISTERI

6

NAME OF PUBLIC ENI'ITY

BUNGOMA MUNICIPALITY

NGOMA MUNICIPALITY

KANDUYI SUB.COUNTY

LOCATIoN/slrE STATUS

QUANTITY/SI

ZE
ASSET DESCRIPTION

LOCATION OF PUBIIC ENTITY

DEPARTMENTs/No
LAPTOPS

Good Condition1Office Administrator

Good Condition1adrninistrative offi cer

Good Condition1Procurement officer
Good condition1Finance O{ficer

1Phys ical Pla nner

6ood Condition1Public Health Officer
Good Condition15u rvayor

HP core i5
BUNGOMA MUNICIPALITY

COMPUTER DESI(TOP
Good condition1Office Administrator
Good condition1Accountants
Good condition1lluman Resource
Good condition1Physical Planner
Good condition1Finance officer

1

Dell

BUNGOMA MUNICIPALITY2

PRINTER
Good condition1Municipal M anager

1Officer Administrator

Good condition1Accountants
Good condition1

HP laserjet
BUNGOMA MUNICIPALITY3

Hurnan Resource

PHOTOCOPYING MACHINE
Good condition1HQ Main OfficeHP KM -1635

BUNGOMA MUNICIPALITY4

PAPER SHREODER
Good condition1HQ Main Office

BUNGOMA MUNICIPALITY5

CHAIRS

Good condition1Municipal Manager
High back leather executive

ergonormic

Good condition1Physical Planner
High back leather executive

ergonormlc

Good condition1Officer AdministratorSecretarial chair

Good condition3HQ Main OfflceLinked vistors chair

Good conditionttHQ Main OfficeExecutive conference chairs

Good condition1l\dministrative officer

Good condition1Finance officer
Good condition1

Good condition1Public Hea lth officer

Good condition1procurement officer

High back executive fabric

chair

Good Condition

Good condition

Good condition

Accounta nt



Revenue clerk

Human Resou rce

Environmentalist

Good con(lition

Good condition

1

1

Good condition1

Good condition1

Good condition1

Good condition2HQ Main Office

Survayor

Auditor

High back Executive fabric

chair

TABLE Good condition1llQ Main Officeeblcn ae tenf e(corveUtxecE

Good conditionLMunicipal managernI tecI bates eI ood (Uo b eD

Good condition1Munici al managerLockable wall cabnet

Good condition1MuniciP al manager
Good condition1Administrative officer

Executive tables (1.6M)

Good conditionL
Phv sical planner

Good condition1Finance officer
Good condition1Accountant
Good conditionLtceofRam nUH

Good condition1Procument

1Office administrator
Good condition1

Public Healty Officer
Good condition1Revenue Clerk

Good conditionLAuditor
Good condition1savayor

Executive tables (1.4 M

BUNGOMA MUNICIPALITY1

REFRIDGERATOR
Good conditiontHQ Main office

Haier - HRD-210MP/W
BUNGOMA MUNICIPALITY8

cool(NG GA5
Good condition1HQ Main office

6KG Cylinder

BUNGOMA MUNICIPATITY

KITCHEN UTENSILS
Good condition

HQ Main officeAssorted kitchen utensils
BUNGOMA MUNICIPALITY10

Prepared bY

Designation

Date:

Signature

Approved by

DesiSnature:

Date:

Signature:

Peninah Malisia

Supply chain management officer

CPA Gabriel Kibiriti

The MuniclPal Manger

Resource

Good condition
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